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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: This is a

          3  hearing of the Public Safety Committee. Today we are

          4  here to culminate two years of work regarding school

          5  safety and security.

          6                 Over the past two years, the Public

          7  Safety and Education Committee -- can we check the

          8  mic whoever is responsible for that. I hear a lot of

          9  feedback --

         10                 The Public Safety and Education

         11  Committee has held a series of hearings regarding

         12  school safety. Those hearings include a March 3

         13  hearing on school safety, a September 24, 2003

         14  hearing regarding all the different previous

         15  incarnations of these bills, especially the school

         16  security camera bill. The results are the bills we

         17  have before us today. They are the products of

         18  numerous hearings and discussion with the

         19  Administration. Although, the Administration still

         20  disagrees with parts of two of the bills, I believe

         21  it is appropriate way these bills to give the

         22  parents and students and this Council more of a role

         23  in how our schools function.

         24                 The first bill, Intro 150- A, school

         25  security camera bill, which I introduced, requires
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          2  the Department of Education by the end of 2006, to

          3  review each and every school in the system to

          4  determine whether school security camera should be

          5  placed at these schools. In addition, the DOE must

          6  submit a report to the Council by the end of 2006

          7  outlining those schools that have cameras, those

          8  that do not and the reason why. The bill reflects

          9  the Council's intent that the school cameras be

         10  placed at the entrance and exit of every building.

         11                 Again, we've been working on this

         12  bill for two years. I'm proud to say that we've been

         13  working together with the Administration on this

         14  bill. When I originally introduced it two years ago,

         15  there did not appear to be an intent on the part of

         16  the Administration to seriously place security

         17  cameras in our schools. However, since I introduced

         18  the bill, $120 million has been put into the

         19  Department of Education budget in a five year

         20  capital plan for the purpose of placing security

         21  cameras in school. That evidence is a serious intent

         22  to put these cameras in schools. It's also important

         23  to note that the Mayor did not oppose security

         24  cameras in schools at any point. Just opposed

         25  basically our right to legislate it which is an
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          2  ongoing issue in many, many areas. So that's not

          3  specific to this school camera bill. Rather than

          4  this drag this issue out to court for years and

          5  years, we all decided it was better to work together

          6  to get cameras into schools as soon as possible.

          7  This bill is a result of that effort.

          8                 The second bill, 226- A, which I also

          9  introduced, requires that the Department of

         10  Education to provide data on the web and that each

         11  school in their annual school report card required

         12  under State law to list school crime statistics and

         13  other non- criminal incidents that are serious or

         14  disruptive. This bill is a huge step toward

         15  accountability at the DOE by providing parents with

         16  easy access to information regarding the safety of

         17  the child's school. Thus, for the first time,

         18  certain DOE data will now be publicly available

         19  including on the web. In addition, crime statistics

         20  for each school is provided by the NYPD will be more

         21  readily accessible.

         22                 Again, on a personal note, I'm a

         23  parent of a fifth grader who is about to leave the

         24  public school she's in to go to a middle school. I'm

         25  attempting to find information on those middle
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          2  schools right now. I just went on the internet and

          3  bought a big book on the City's best middle schools

          4  to find out which school to send her too. It wasn't

          5  possible for me as a parent to find out the crime

          6  statistics in any individual school. Because of this

          7  bill, parents will now be able to find out the crime

          8  statistics of an individual school on the web and

          9  hopefully after negotiating with the Administration

         10  and other locations so that they can make an inform

         11  choice as to where they should send their children.

         12                 The last bill, 322- A, which I

         13  believe was introduced by Al Vann, requires the NYPD

         14  to disclose on a quarterly basis the number of

         15  school safety agents assigned to each school average

         16  for that quarter. Only those schools that have

         17  school safety agents need to be listed and in order

         18  to reflect the change in school safety agent from

         19  day to day, only an average is called for.

         20  Transparency is important to the Council. To parents

         21  and students, these bills shed light on school

         22  safety and will assist the Council and parents in

         23  shaping school policy. I'm very proud of this

         24  Council, this Committee, especially on the work hard

         25  its done to get this done and the Administration for
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          2  the most part were very close on most of this.

          3                 I'd like to introduce the Council

          4  Members who have joined us today. We have hopefully

          5  a full Committee. We will be voting today. On my far

          6  left, Melinda Katz, Sarah Gonzalez, Vincent Gentile,

          7  Hiram Monserrate, Eric Dilan and Phil Reed. Thank

          8  you all for joining us. We have with us to testify

          9  and I believe the only panel. Oh, Jim Oddo. Jim Oddo

         10  has been from Staten Island, our minority leader, a

         11  leader in the fight to get school security cameras

         12  in place in our schools. In fact, when I introduced

         13  this bill, I wasn't aware of the amount of work that

         14  Jim had done on this. Then I took Jim's counsel on

         15  this and he's putting cameras in his schools in

         16  Staten Island before this was even a big issue. I

         17  took his lead and did that in my issue based again

         18  on his example and he's been a big help to me on

         19  this and to this Committee. He's not a member of

         20  this Committee and obviously feel so strongly about

         21  this issue that he's here today. So thank you for

         22  joining us. Would you like to say something on this?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes, please. I

         24  would just like to say that I want to commend you,

         25  Mr. Chairman. I have allocated close to a $1 million
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          2  of cameras in five schools. Three are in and two are

          3  on the way. I just want to tell you very quickly I

          4  was out to one of the schools around a month ago and

          5  where as before we had a school safety agent sitting

          6  in the entrance way, now I have a school safety

          7  agent sitting in the entrance way who has two

          8  monitors in front of him. He has 16 cameras. He sees

          9  what's happening in the school yard, what's

         10  happening around the school and he can be in 16

         11  places at once. The parents, the teachers, the

         12  principal, everyone loves them. It's not a silver

         13  bullet. But it certainly enhances the safety in the

         14  school. I watched it and it just encouraged me to

         15  allocate more money in the next go around and I

         16  commend you and this Committee for making sure

         17  that's not the exception to the rule. That's the

         18  rule. So thank you to you and members of this

         19  Committee.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         21  Council Member. You're absolutely right. The school

         22  that has these cameras overwhelmingly support them

         23  especially the teachers, parents and the principals

         24  at the school. They are essential weapons, I

         25  believe, in the fight to keep our kids safe. They
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          2  keep intruders from entering the school. They

          3  prevent kids from leaving the school. They prevent

          4  bad behavior in the school. They may, in fact,

          5  prevent terrorist activity. As we saw in Russia,

          6  those terrorists were casing that school for months.

          7  These cameras may pick that up. So they are

          8  essential tools. To testify regarding these school

          9  cameras and the other bills today, we have from the

         10  Police Department, the Commissioner of School

         11  Safety, Chief Gerald Nelson, and from the Department

         12  of Education we have Rose Albanese-DePinto and Steve

         13  Allinger. Welcome, gentlemen and ladies. You can

         14  begin in whatever order you desire.

         15                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Good morning,

         16  Chair Vallone and Members of the Public Safety

         17  Committee. My name is Rose Albanese-DePinto and I'm

         18  the Senior Counselor to Chancellor Joel Klein, for

         19  School Intervention and Development. Thank you for

         20  the opportunity to appear before you today to update

         21  you on the progress of our work with respect to the

         22  deployment of video surveillance cameras in school

         23  buildings and to offer comment on Intro 150- A, the

         24  proposed law regarding the installation of video

         25  security cameras in our public schools.
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          2                 Since this is my first testimony

          3  before the Council since my office, School

          4  Intervention and Development, assumed responsibility

          5  for school safety, I am pleased to have the

          6  opportunity to update you on our progress in

          7  promoting and sustaining a climate of safety

          8  throughout the New York City public schools. The

          9  goal of the office --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's like a rock

         11  concert in here this morning. Hopefully, we will be

         12  able to get that fixed or if they don't we'll just

         13  switch mics.

         14                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: I'll try again.

         15  The goal of the office of School Intervention and

         16  Development is to promote a Citywide focus on best

         17  practices and school safety. Beginning last January,

         18  2004 in response to a mayoral initiative and in

         19  collaboration with our partners from the New York

         20  City Police Department and the Criminal Justice

         21  Coordinator's Office, we focused on safety and

         22  security in our most troubled schools.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: One moment.

         24                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Let me start

         25  again. Last January 2004, in response to a mayoral
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          2  initiative and in collaboration with our partners

          3  from the New York City Police Department and the

          4  Criminal Justice Coordinator's Office, we focused on

          5  safety and security in our most troubled schools.

          6  Since then, the scope of our work has expanded to

          7  include all schools and to provide support and

          8  guidance to over 1,300 schools.

          9                 Our objective is to foster an

         10  integrated and coordinated approach to school safety

         11  working with regional leaders, school leaders, and

         12  the New York City Police Department.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We've put in a

         14  call to the audio people. But we'll have to deal

         15  with it for now. So just struggle through. Thanks.

         16                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: I will, thank

         17  you. My office has created comprehensive assessment

         18  tools to monitor and evaluate schools on safety and

         19  security and we have used these tools to train

         20  regional teams so that they to can use them to

         21  conduct school assessments. My team, in partnership

         22  with the New York City Police Department, continues

         23  to visit impact schools to conduct walk-throughs,

         24  make recommendations and monitor progress. We have

         25  also revised the New York City Discipline Code to
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          2  ensure enforcement and clarity.

          3                 Hearing sites have been expanded and

          4  additional personnel have been hired to address and

          5  support school needs. The Office of School

          6  Intervention and Development has worked with

          7  regional leaders to expand the alternative learning

          8  sites for suspended students. We now have 28 sites

          9  for high school students and 24 sites for middle

         10  school students. We have learned that expanded youth

         11  development services, greater opportunities for

         12  positive student engagement in school life and

         13  strict enforcement of low- level incidents help to

         14  prevent the escalation of major criminal occurrences

         15  and result in an improved school culture.

         16                 As part of our focus on best

         17  practices in school safety, the Department, in

         18  consultation with the New York City Police

         19  Department, is expanding the use of security systems

         20  in our schools, including enhancements in the areas

         21  of video surveillance, radio communications, access

         22  control, and weapons detection. In light of the

         23  focus of this hearing, I will talk about our capital

         24  plan initiative to install network based digital

         25  video surveillance systems, before proceeding to
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          2  comment on the proposed local law.

          3                 The Department's five- year capital

          4  plan includes $119.9 million to provide state- of-

          5  the- art surveillance systems in schools that

          6  currently have no operational surveillance system,

          7  as well as providing retrofit and upgrades for

          8  schools that currently have antiquated surveillance

          9  equipment. The Internet Protocol Digital Video

         10  Surveillance Initiative addresses the school

         11  system's critical need for a systematic approach to

         12  the planning, procurement, installation, and

         13  maintenance of video surveillance systems.

         14                 The need for a coordinated capital

         15  initiative became evident upon review of the

         16  historical deployment of cameras in our schools.

         17  Prior to launching our on- going network- based

         18  surveillance initiative, the Department had

         19  approximately 155 school buildings with video

         20  surveillance capacity ranging from one camera to

         21  multiple camera configurations. Historically, there

         22  was no uniform standard guiding those who decided to

         23  install them. Those decisions were made by

         24  principals and other school staff, as well as staff

         25  in district offices, the Division of School
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          2  Facilities Security Unit, or the School Construction

          3  Authority.

          4                 The funding sources were also

          5  diverse. Some projects were accomplished through the

          6  Department's capital plan. Funding for other

          7  projects was identified by districts or schools.

          8  Some projects were generously supported by earmarks

          9  from the City Council, other elected officials and

         10  private donations.

         11                 Consequently, the provisions for the

         12  use and maintenance of the systems were not

         13  consistent. The technical specifications were not

         14  always satisfactory and a number of systems fell

         15  into disrepair. For example, less than one- third of

         16  these closed circuit television systems had adequate

         17  recording capability. This network based video

         18  surveillance technology allows us to leverage the

         19  Department's investment in network infrastructure

         20  that over the past six years has greatly expanded

         21  internet access in our schools.

         22                 During the current school year, the

         23  video technology systems are being installed in 36

         24  locations, including all 16 impact school buildings

         25  and 20 sites that received fiscal 2004 Resolution A
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          2  funding from the City Council. The 36 projects

          3  include 27 entirely new systems and nine systems

          4  that utilize some cameras from legacy closed circuit

          5  TV systems. The Impact School Projects are

          6  progressing. A new 56- camera system has been

          7  completed at one of the impact schools. Phase I

          8  systems have been completed at three other impact

          9  schools with Phase II expansions forthcoming to

         10  cover areas in those buildings not covered in Phase

         11  I. Proposals for the remaining 12 impact school

         12  sites are currently under review with work expected

         13  to commence this month.

         14                 Camera location selection for each

         15  school building depends upon site- specific needs

         16  and physical configurations. My office works closely

         17  with the school principals, building councils,

         18  regional safety administrators, New York City Police

         19  Department, school safety supervisors, local

         20  instructional superintendents, and division of

         21  school facilities managers to review the scope of

         22  work for each site to ensure that camera coverage

         23  corresponds with the site- specific priorities.

         24                 Based on individualized assessments

         25  conduced by these teams, cameras may be placed at
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          2  entrances and exits, in hallways, stairwells,

          3  cafeterias and auditoriums and/or the building

          4  exterior or school grounds. These are often well

          5  known hot spots in schools. The on going project

          6  will increase the number of Department of Education

          7  buildings with some video surveillance presence to

          8  nearly 200. With the capital plan, we anticipate

          9  installing network based video surveillance

         10  technology in up to 400 locations.

         11                 In selecting future project sites,

         12  the Department, in consultation with the New York

         13  City Police Department will focus on schools facing

         14  the greatest challenges in safety and security. We

         15  have previously submitted to the Council a

         16  preliminary list of video surveillance sites for the

         17  first two years of the plan. These are subject to

         18  change based on various factors, including analysis

         19  of more recent incident and school data, and

         20  additional consultation with the regional

         21  superintendents and the New York City Police

         22  Department.

         23                 In addition to the capital plan, the

         24  Council has committed to supplement these funds by

         25  earmarking $1.4 million of fiscal year 2005
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          2  Resolution A money to video surveillance.

          3  Furthermore, the school construction authority has

          4  begun including this video surveillance technology

          5  as part of its standard program design for all new

          6  school facilities. School construction authority

          7  currently has 25 additional construction projects on

          8  the drawing board, which will receive video

          9  surveillance technology.

         10                 There are multiple factors that

         11  influence the climate, culture, and safety in

         12  schools. As such, no two schools are alike and each

         13  case requires a targeted safety strategy. It is

         14  important to note that installing cameras is just

         15  one piece of a comprehensive plan for safety in a

         16  school. The proposed law, Intro 150- A, calls for

         17  cameras to be installed at schools deemed

         18  appropriate by DOE and the New York City Police

         19  Department. It also calls for a Video Surveillance

         20  Needs Assessment Review to be conducted in all

         21  schools.

         22                 As you can see, this bill supports

         23  the efforts that the Department of Education and the

         24  Police Department are presently undertaking.

         25  Together, the Department of Education and the New
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          2  York City Police Department continue to evaluate the

          3  need for cameras and other safety interventions in

          4  our schools, install cameras where appropriate, and

          5  (3) prioritize those schools with the greatest need.

          6  We appreciate the City Council's support and

          7  dedication to our efforts to provide a safe and

          8  orderly environment in our schools. We all agree our

          9  students should be able to learn and our staff teach

         10  in a school environment that is free from

         11  intimidation and physical harm.

         12                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         13  address you on these important matters. I look

         14  forward to answering any questions that you may

         15  have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We're going to

         17  have all the testimony completed and then we'll go

         18  to questions. Next.

         19                 MR. STEVE ALLINGER: Good morning,

         20  Chair Vallone and members of the Committee on Public

         21  Safety. My name is Steve Allinger and I'm the

         22  Executive Director of the Office of

         23  Intergovernmental Affairs for the New York City

         24  Department of Education. I am pleased to testify

         25  before you today on school safety data reporting and
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          2  proposed Intro 226- A.

          3                 Since the last time the Department of

          4  Education appeared before you to testify on school

          5  safety, we together with the New York City Police

          6  Department have continued to work to make school

          7  safety data available to parents and the public. As

          8  promised, earlier this year, we posted school

          9  location incident data for the 2002- 2003 school

         10  year as reported to the Department of Education by

         11  the NYPD. This information is broken down into

         12  categories of major crimes, other crimes, and non-

         13  criminal incidents. We then enhanced this page on

         14  our website by making it more user friendly in

         15  October, and we now have the incident data for the

         16   '03- '04 school year posted. In addition, we now

         17  have a link to the State Division of Criminal

         18  Justice Services on our website.

         19                 We updated our Discipline Code this

         20  year, as Rose mentioned. The categories of

         21  infractions are now aligned with the categories on

         22  our Online Occurrence Reporting System (OORS). We

         23  remain committed to ensuring transparency at the

         24  Department, as particularly regarding the safety of

         25  our schools. We are examining ways to provide
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          2  parents with useful data that will be meaningful to

          3  them. The Chancellor is committed to providing as

          4  much of the OORS data to parents as we can, in

          5  particular data that will let parents know the

          6  infractions by discipline code level. The discipline

          7  code is a document that parents, students and school

          8  staff are already familiar with and uses language

          9  that they understand. We will work with NYPD to

         10  ensure that the reporting of the PD data and our

         11  reporting of the OORS data is not confusing in any

         12  way and we are in the process of doing this now.

         13                 Intro 226- A calls for the Department

         14  of Education to make school safety data available on

         15  our website; it specifies categories of data to be

         16  presented and it requires the data to be included in

         17  our Annual School Report Cards. We appreciate and

         18  agree with the Council's intent behind this proposed

         19  legislation which is to provide practical safety

         20  information about schools to parents and the public.

         21  As I have outlined, the Department is providing data

         22  and we are planning to provide more in a meaningful

         23  way. However, school safety information and how it

         24  is provided is a province of the State. The school

         25  report card, in particular, is a report mandated and
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          2  prescribed by the New York State Education

          3  Department. The City Council, therefore, is

          4  preempted by State Education Law 2802 from

          5  regulating this State mandated and authorized

          6  report.

          7                 I might also add that Section 2554,

          8  the education law prescribes the school report cards

          9  and those two statutes reference each other. I'd

         10  also like to add that the State legislature has

         11  passed a landmark legislation, Chapter 181, loss of

         12  2000 that heavy regulates school districts through

         13  the Commissioner of education namely providing

         14  school safety plans, uniform, violent incident

         15  reporting systems, and codes of conduct and

         16  increased penalties for certain in fractures and

         17  increased the authority of school principals to

         18  suspend which are now equally to that of

         19  superintendents. Reading the statutes carefully,

         20  it's clear that the Commissioner prescribes the form

         21  and the content of what's included in a uniform

         22  violence reporting system.

         23                 It's also clear from the State law

         24  that these reports have to be uniform and comparable

         25  with respect to the types of incidents reported
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          2  across the State. The intent was that if you picked

          3  up a report in Rochester, it would crosswalk to one

          4  in New York or Pativia (phonetic) or anywhere in the

          5  State. It does not include language that says

          6  including but not limited to which is usually how

          7  you would provide authority to customize a report

          8  locally.

          9                 That being said, the Chancellor is

         10  dedicated to ensuring that our schools are safe

         11  places for teaching and learning and that parents

         12  have access to information to help them make

         13  informed decisions. I thank the Council for allowing

         14  me to testify today, and will be happy to answer

         15  your questions. I'd also like to add that the

         16  Chancellor wants me to convey to you that he is

         17  willing to sit down, have the senior staff sit down

         18  with Council Members and get your feed back on ways

         19  that we can expand or improve our reporting systems.

         20  We know that you are in very close contact with your

         21  parent communities and your neighborhoods and that

         22  you often have the most accurate feedback from those

         23  constituencies and we respect the role you play as

         24  tribunes for your communities.

         25                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Good morning,
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          2  Mr. Chairman, and members of the City Council. I am

          3  Assistant Chief Gerald Nelson, Commanding Officer of

          4  the New York City Police Department's School Safety

          5  Division. On behalf of Police Commissioner Raymond

          6  Kelly, I am pleased to be here today to discuss the

          7  three bills before you this morning.

          8                 At the outset, I would like to thank

          9  the Council for your continued support of the

         10  efforts of the Police Department and the Department

         11  of Education in addressing safety in our City's

         12  schools. As we have discussed on many prior

         13  occasions, the NYPD and DOE work closely together to

         14  ensure that the school environment is appropriate

         15  for teaching and learning, for students and staff

         16  alike. Both under State law and under the terms of

         17  the Memorandum of Understanding between the former

         18  Board of Education and the City, it is the

         19  responsibility of DOE to develop safety plans

         20  collaboratively with the Police Department to

         21  provide a safe place to work and learn. In fact, our

         22  participation has yielded significant success with a

         23  38 percent drop in crime in schools since the end of

         24  the 1999 school year, the first year of the Police

         25  Department's direct involvement in schools.
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          2                 The Police Department and Department

          3  of Education has a strong mutual commitment to

          4  addressing security concerns and crime issues as

          5  they arise and devoting resources in a responsive

          6  and effective way. One example of this commitment is

          7  the Impact for Schools initiative that Mayor

          8  Bloomberg unveiled earlier this year. The Impact for

          9  Schools initiative dedicated resources toward

         10  reducing crime, and identifying the causes of school

         11  problems. Effective school safety planning and

         12  analysis of data and conditions affecting our

         13  planning must continue to be flexible and allow for

         14  needed change. Resources must be allocated according

         15  to the needs identified by the experts in the field.

         16  The Police Department has a track record of success

         17  in crime reduction based on principals of rapid

         18  deployment as our managers identify and respond to

         19  ever- changing conditions. We acknowledge the

         20  Council's commendable intent in introducing the

         21  bills before you today, and we have worked together

         22  to address some of our concerns in order to craft

         23  legislation which we may all support.

         24                 With respect to Intro 150- A

         25  regarding the placement of surveillance cameras in
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          2  public schools in New York City, as I previously

          3  testified, we appreciate the benefits but also

          4  understand the complications that video surveillance

          5  presents. The bill affords the necessary discretion

          6  to determine which schools may need such cameras and

          7  which schools may not, based upon our expertise and

          8  our individualized assessment. Cameras are useful

          9  and valuable tools. But we must be careful not to

         10  deprive ourselves of other tools or resources which

         11  may be more effective in certain circumstances. We

         12  defer to DOE  regarding the potential cost of

         13  installing security cameras and remind the Council

         14  that the cost of maintaining and monitoring the

         15  cameras on an ongoing basis will also need to be

         16  considered.

         17                 With respect to Intro 226- A, as you

         18  have heard, the Administration does not support the

         19  bill for the reasons explained by the DOE. However,

         20  we also agree with its concept and intent. All of

         21  the City's crime data is drawn from data collected

         22  and reported by the Police Department. NYPD's data

         23  collection is specifically related to issues which

         24  we believe are of concern to the Council: School

         25  crime. Although the inclusions of a category of non-
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          2  criminal incidents is not further defined in the

          3  bill, we understand it to mean those incidents which

          4  are reported to NYPD under the terms of the

          5  Memorandum of Understanding which may not rise to

          6  the level of felonies or misdemeanors, but are

          7  criminal in nature: Possession of instruments

          8  capable of being used as weapons, loitering,

          9  disorderly conduct, harassment, firework violations,

         10  and trespass.

         11                 Since the hearing conducted by the

         12  Council in January of this year, the NYPD and DOE

         13  have worked closely together to post criminal

         14  incident data on DOE's website, and were successful

         15  in doing so in February. We subsequently modified

         16  and improved the presentation format in response to

         17  the concerns of the Council and parents seeking

         18  meaningful data. We now provide a context for the

         19  incident data in a web- based presentation format

         20  that contrasts incident data of any particular

         21  school with data for schools of similar size. We

         22  displayed a number of major crimes, other crimes,

         23  and non- criminal incidents in a particular

         24  building, accompanied by the average numbers for

         25  similar sized schools. Major crimes are separated
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          2  into property crimes and crimes against persons.

          3                 Intro 226- A expands current

          4  reporting by requiring that major crimes be

          5  separated by crime category, and that other crimes

          6  be separated into property crimes and crimes against

          7  persons. Note that it is helpful to combine

          8  individual incidents in this manner, because in the

          9  vast majority of schools, for the overwhelming

         10  majority of offenses reported, the number is zero.

         11  The bill also requires reporting of data relating to

         12  disruptive, dangerous or violent behavior which is

         13  contained in the DOE's Online Occurrence Reporting

         14  System. Because some of the information requested

         15  would overlap with the crime data reported by the

         16  NYPD, our agencies work closely together to avoid

         17  confusion and create an appropriate mechanism to

         18  prevent duplicative reporting.

         19                 Finally, we will address Intro No.

         20  322- A. The bill adds to the Police Reporting Law,

         21  Administrative Code Section 14- 150, a requirement

         22  that the NYPD report on a quarterly basis the number

         23  of school safety agents assigned to each individual

         24  school operated by the DOE. The NYPD is responsible

         25  for deployment decisions regarding school safety
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          2  agents, and frequently consults with DOE. It is my

          3  role to assess the deployment of school safety

          4  agents in the City's schools almost on a daily

          5  basis. Please understand that conditions may change

          6  rapidly in the schools system, with particular

          7  schools experiencing particular problems and needs

          8  at various times.

          9                 To make these day- to- day

         10  adjustments and coverage at various schools, I am

         11  able to use resources at my disposal that do not

         12  impact on other schools. I am able to deploy the

         13  School Safety Division Uniformed Task Force, the

         14  Patrol Borough Task Force, and the School Safety

         15  Division Borough Task Force, as well as my Citywide

         16  Special Services Unit. In addition, each precinct

         17  has a School Sergeant as well as a number of Youth

         18  Officers who deal with day- to- day school issues.

         19  Each patrol borough has a full- time School Captain

         20  acting as a liaison between the School Safety

         21  Division and other units within the Police

         22  Department.

         23                 We must retain total flexibility to

         24  utilize these resources where they are needed.

         25  Change in conditions is constant. Similar to the
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          2  management tools utilized by the police executives

          3  in the CompStat process, as well as our Impact for

          4  Schools initiative, we make deployment decisions

          5  regarding school safety agents based on current

          6  needs and resources. The dynamic staffing process

          7  currently utilized must remain in place, to take

          8  into account not only quantitative crime data but

          9  also the day- to- day qualitative experience and

         10  tone of each school, as well as the inevitable

         11  changes in conditions in the continuing threat of

         12  terrorism.

         13                 A quarterly report with the level of

         14  detail required by the bill creates expectations

         15  which may radically change with the passage of time

         16  or the changing of circumstances. It would also be

         17  misleading since it would not reflect the additional

         18  resources devoted to individual schools by the

         19  School Safety Division and Patrol Bureau as I've

         20  outlined above. The report required by the bill,

         21  most importantly, presents a serious potential

         22  danger to the safety of the school community,

         23  including the safety of the agents themselves. Were

         24  the number of school safety agents assigned to each

         25  individual school to be made public on a routine
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          2  basis, particular schools or agents could be

          3  targeted for criminal or disruptive behavior,

          4  especially in smaller schools which may have only

          5  one or two school safety agents assigned.

          6                      This level of detail is

          7  unprecedented among the data which the Police

          8  Department is required to report pursuant to

          9  Administrative Code Section 14- 150 and represents a

         10  radical departure from the level of information

         11  which the Council receives in its oversight role. To

         12  amend the Police Reporting Law in this manner

         13  unnecessarily exposes the school community to danger

         14  for a questionable purpose. Deployment in individual

         15  schools is a matter for the police executives to

         16  determine in an atmosphere of constant change,

         17  rather than quarterly measurements to be used as an

         18  artificial benchmark which may or may not reflect

         19  current conditions and resources. Accordingly, we

         20  oppose Intro 322- A as an unnecessary and

         21  potentially dangerous measure.

         22                 Thank you again for the opportunity

         23  to comment on the three bills under consideration

         24  today, and for working with us to effectuate the

         25  ultimate goal, of ensuring the safety of the City's
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          2  public schools. I will be pleased to answer any

          3  questions that you might have. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you all

          5  for your testimony. Let me begin bill by bill. I

          6  will begin with the 150- A, the cameras in the

          7  school bill. Ms. DePinto, you testified that there

          8  are 36 schools scheduled, by the end of this year

          9  there will be 36 schools with cameras?

         10                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How many schools

         12  exist with cameras right now?

         13                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: I believe that

         14  we mentioned there should be about 200 schools by

         15  the end of this school year.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Two- hundred by

         17  this school year.

         18                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Um- hum.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I thought your

         20  testimony was there was 36 by the end of this school

         21  year?

         22                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Right. But

         23  there were 155 schools that already have cameras in

         24  them.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Those are
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          2  the cameras we discussed that are in --

          3                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: These are the

          4  new cameras, the 36 additional.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thirty- six

          6  additional. And that will bring the total up to

          7  about 200.

          8                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I just want to

         10  check your testimony. One moment. You said that the

         11  36 projects include 27  new systems and nine that

         12  utilize some cameras from the legacy close circuit

         13  TV systems. Oh, I understand. So those nine will be

         14  revamped and the other 155 are staying the way they

         15  are.

         16                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What is your

         18  plan, you've put in about $119 million into the

         19  capital budget. How many schools do you envision

         20  that will provide security cameras for?

         21                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Well, we are

         22  anticipating moving from around the 200 number that

         23  I just discussed to about 400.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Four- hundred

         25  will be the total over what time period?
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          2                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: If the

          3  resources are there, within the five years.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The total amount

          5  of schools in this City?

          6                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Thirteen-

          7  hundred schools.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's

          9  approximately 25 percent of the schools would have

         10  security cameras. We are all in agreement. First let

         11  me thank you for your assistance, all of you, on

         12  these bills. I know even the ones you disagree with,

         13  it's only in part and we're very close to working

         14  out something on those. We'll get to that later. But

         15  on this bill, our sole disagreement is the total

         16  amount of schools. Obviously, I want every school

         17  done. And this is a good first start in that

         18  direction. A good first step to get 25 percent of

         19  them done. We're going to continue to work to make

         20  sure that they all get done.

         21                 Chief Nelson, what is and I know the

         22  answer to this question, but I'd like everyone else

         23  also, the schools that these cameras have been

         24  placed in, how effective have they been?

         25                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Well, it's an
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          2  excellent tool and the schools where the cameras

          3  have been placed in that are operable, it's like you

          4  explained or like Councilman James Oddo had

          5  mentioned, it frees up my agents. I have agents that

          6  can stay in the base now. Look at the camera instead

          7  of patrolling all over and having an idea what's

          8  going on. It's an excellent tool to have in the

          9  schools.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I agree. For

         11  those who haven't been made aware of what these new

         12  systems are like, I've been out to many, many

         13  schools and been meeting with many different

         14  companies and working with the Administration, these

         15  cameras are an amazing improvement of what you've

         16  seen in the past. In fact, one agent does not have

         17  to even sit there and monitor a whole board of

         18  cameras anymore because the cameras don't even turn

         19  on until there is movement in that direction. The

         20  camera turns on and many times with bells and

         21  whistles so you wouldn't have to be staring at that

         22  camera to see somebody sneaking in and out. In fact,

         23  they could be monitored at the location. They could

         24  be monitored at the precinct. They could be

         25  monitored at a separate location.
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          2                 These are all decisions that will be

          3  made by the Police Department and the DOE. Some of

          4  them can even go over the existing phone lines in

          5  the schools as technology gets better which would

          6  decrease the cost of putting these cameras into

          7  schools. Chief, obviously you believe they are a

          8  deterrent, they deter people from entering the

          9  school who should not be. Correct?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And have they

         12  been effective in eliminating crime and other

         13  disruptive behavior inside of schools?

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Because this

         15  is a new project as Ms. DePinto was talking about

         16  and the new ones that are being installed, we

         17  haven't had enough time to do a full analysis as of

         18  yet.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: But your

         20  anecdotal evidence from discussions with teachers

         21  and students and your own security agents, what does

         22  that reveal?

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: For those

         24  where they are in place, they are happy with them.

         25  Like I had said in my previous testimony, that it is

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  an excellent tool to have amongst other tools.

          3  Closed circuit TV is an excellent tool.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I completely

          5  agree. In fact, in my investigation, I'm not sure if

          6  you are allowed to say these things. But many, many

          7  different types of crimes have stopped occurring and

          8  bad behavior such as things which at one time

          9  considered impossible. Things like sex in bathrooms

         10  and hallways and things like that, have almost

         11  stopped completely because of cameras in schools.

         12  And all sorts of disruptive behavior. In fact, not

         13  only students but everyone else on the school has to

         14  be on the best behavior including teachers. If there

         15  is a disruption in the cafeteria and there is a

         16  camera in the cafeteria, they now have to act. They

         17  no longer can stand against the wall, if someone of

         18  them were doing that. It has helped in many, many,

         19  many ways to cut down the disruptive behavior.

         20  Chief, what about in the truancy area? How effective

         21  have they been?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: The truancy

         23  area, I imagine it has been helping because

         24  enforcement of our track system and just truancy in

         25  particular. At those schools, I'm quite sure now I
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          2  have a playback where I can go right back and take a

          3  look and see exactly what's going in and who is

          4  coming and who's not and make a determination based

          5  on what students may be saying that they were there.

          6  Well, I guess we have them on video tape now. But

          7  Council Member Vallone, as I said before, an

          8  excellent tool amongst other tools that we use.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I just like to

         10  hear you keep saying it. Okay. My last area then you

         11  can hopefully say this would be about potential

         12  terrorist activities, in what way would they be

         13  effective in that regard?

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Well, the

         15  school Safety Division as well as the NYPD under the

         16  guidance of Commissioner Kelly has made terrorism,

         17  put in that in the forefront in the City period. And

         18  the school Safety Division, we have a unit dedicated

         19  to that. Anytime if you look at what happened in

         20  Russia and we can have surveillance cameras to see

         21  what's going on at any given time and look at see

         22  any construction, not spy, but be aware of what's

         23  going on in the schools, it would be a wonderful

         24  deterrent for terrorism. We caught it. It's a

         25  recorded tape or digital tape that we can check and
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          2  see what's going on in the school, who's been in the

          3  school, what the repairs have been in the school,

          4  who's unauthorized in the school. It's an endless,

          5  endless avenue of which we can utilize to make the

          6  school safe and prevent terrorism.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think you're

          8  absolutely correct. One problem I have with this is

          9  the name. The Internet Protocol Digital Video

         10  Surveillance Initiative.

         11                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: Yes, it's a

         12  very long one.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Chief, the

         14  Police Department comes up with Hercules, Atlas,

         15  Impact. You can do better than this.

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Well, in the

         17  consultation, we deferred to DOE to come up with a

         18  name.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Take it back

         20  over, please.

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let's get

         23  Hammer. Let's get something good going here. I'm

         24  just deciding whether to stick on one issue and take

         25  the questions on that or move to each different

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  bill. Stick to one. Council Members, we'll stick to

          3  the issue first of school cameras and then we'll

          4  come back to questions regarding reporting and

          5  school safety agents once we finish with the school

          6  cameras. Let's go to James Oddo first.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman. If I could just amplify some of my earlier

          9  comments and touch basis with what you said. We have

         10  a problem in some of the schools in my district that

         11  are rather large schools, but only have one security

         12  officer and the conundrum they face is well, we want

         13  them to do sort of vertical patrols. But when they

         14  do vertical patrols, who's watching the front door.

         15  So where you had someone who is for the most part

         16  stationary, now that person is at multiple places in

         17  effect at once. You mentioned the types of crimes.

         18  We have a huge graffiti problem on Staten Island.

         19  Now these cameras that are outside the schools are

         20  protecting the four walls of the school which is an

         21  added benefit. Your comments about the different

         22  types of systems. There are systems out there that

         23  allow for handheld monitors where theoretically

         24  administrators and principals could have that

         25  handheld device, video screen and as they do their
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          2  patrols during the day and they walk around and they

          3  have 16 views of the school that they didn't have

          4  before.

          5                 I agree with the Chief that they're

          6  an excellent tool. Chief, let me ask you a

          7  questions. On page one of your testimony, you said

          8  that the bill affords necessary discretion to

          9  determine which schools may need such cameras and

         10  which schools may not. I'm interested in finding out

         11  which schools wouldn't need a camera.

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: As I said in

         13  my statement which schools may need, we have to

         14  prioritize. There are 1,300 schools that are in the

         15  City that we have to deal with. We did it the way

         16  the City Council wanted it. And of course, we would

         17  like to do every school. But we're living in a

         18  realistic world, we can't cover every school at one

         19  time. Someone has to make the hard decisions which

         20  schools are going to be placed on while the money is

         21  still in play. And who's going to make a

         22  determination, DOE in consultation with the Police

         23  Department.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay. It's not

         25  that there might be some schools that wouldn't
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          2  benefit from cameras, it's a question of priorities

          3  in terms of resources and who you address first.

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: You mentioned

          6  that we must be careful not to deprive ourselves of

          7  other tools or resources which may be more effective

          8  in certain circumstances. Give me an example what

          9  you do think would be more effective. What's an

         10  example of one of these tools?

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: I can give

         12  you two examples. If we can get together with the

         13  Fire Department and come up with some sort of plan

         14  on door locking mechanisms. If you look at a school,

         15  at a facility, that school may have 20 different

         16  entrances or exits that should be able to be

         17  controlled by at least one person at a control panel

         18  to lock and open that door. We have scanning sites

         19  where we scan one particular area and then depending

         20  on my agents and also DOE staff to make sure that no

         21  one is slipping in on the side. If I had a mechanism

         22  in place where we can generally lock all those doors

         23  that it would be approved by the Fire Department,

         24  we've been talking with them, that's one goal.

         25                 Another thing is like an access card.
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          2  Anybody that comes into the school should be issued

          3  some sort of access card so we know that any given

          4  time who's in that school. If you look at a school

          5  that's a small community, there are countless

          6  deliveries from various vendors from UPS, Fed- Ex,

          7  and you have parents coming to school. A lot of

          8  people are coming into the school. We have an

          9  antiquated thing where there is an agent sitting at

         10  the desk who's taking down a name and trying to keep

         11  track of who's in the building. If you come into 1PP

         12  right now, you go to a desk. There is something that

         13  takes a picture of you. They have a special ID and

         14  we know who that person is and who's in the building

         15  at any time. The time that we have now with the fear

         16  of terrorism, I think every school should be safe

         17  and have a way to know everybody that's in the

         18  school, what time he or she came in, what time they

         19  left. Those are just two things right there.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: How close are we

         21  to either of those in any of our schools?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: We're looking

         23  into it, sir. I don't know how close we are. But

         24  these are some of the things and there are other

         25  things which I can't speak on that we are looking
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          2  into to make our schools safer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I would just

          4  encourage you folks to reach out to the Council

          5  Members who have already provided; every member of

          6  this body has provided hundreds of thousands of

          7  dollars to each of his or her schools for computers

          8  and everything else and I think there would be many

          9  folks who would interested in helping you find the

         10  resource to do that. My last question is, Ms.

         11  DePinto, you mentioned that this SEA has begun to

         12  address 25 additional projects. Are those on top of

         13  the numbers that you've provided to Chairman

         14  Vallone?

         15                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Yes. These are

         16  new schools.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And the decision

         18  to pick those 25 schools based on?

         19                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Because we

         20  agree that video surveillance is a very important

         21  tool for us to have in our schools.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But specifically

         23  those 25?

         24                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: Are new

         25  construction.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But why those 25

          3  schools is my question.

          4                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Because as we

          5  move forward, we want to make sure that we have

          6  video surveillance as a component in our new school

          7  construction.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So these are all

          9  new schools?

         10                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I'm sorry. Oh,

         12  okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Oddo. How are you choosing these schools? You said

         15  all the impact schools will be done by the end of

         16  the year. How are you choosing the additional

         17  schools to receive these cameras?

         18                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: It's based on

         19  crime data and incident data. The ones that have the

         20  highest need are the ones, those are the priorities

         21  for us right now.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thanks you.

         23  Chief, to follow- up on something Council Member

         24  Oddo said. First of all, how about Sky Hawk or Eagle

         25  or something like that?
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Trust me. The

          3  next time we get together, I'll have a nice acronym

          4  for you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: To follow up,

          6  you said more than once how extremely useful these

          7  cameras can be. See I set him up like that.

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Got me.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Under what

         10  possible scenario would they not be a necessary tool

         11  in a certain school as part of a program which may

         12  include some of the other items that you mentioned.

         13  Why would cameras not be found to be necessary in

         14  any individual school?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: I'm thinking

         16  along the lines once again of where the priorities

         17  are and if I have a school and I'm not going to name

         18  a neighborhood, but in a neighborhood where I have

         19  donuts in every category, not just where the school

         20  tone is excellent and everything is working fine,

         21  and I have a limited resources on what I'm going to

         22  do, that school at that time is not going to get the

         23  cameras if it's based on my recommendations.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's not that

         25  they wouldn't be helpful, it's that you wouldn't
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          2  have the resources. Let me say that's the one reason

          3  that I would accept because you might not have the

          4  actual money. Because this is an expensive

          5  proposition. I think we agree that if you had the

          6  money, you think that they would be effective to

          7  assist you as part of a plan. Because you did assert

          8  that some schools have zero in crime categories, I'm

          9  not sure that is particularly true, but some do have

         10  lesser crime in some of the better districts. But

         11  those in many instances have seen an intruder once

         12  in a blue moon occurrence. But that occurrence could

         13  be a very serious occurrence. A rape in the hallway

         14  or something like that. Or those schools might be

         15  targeted by terrorists. So even though they may not

         16  be a high crime school, I don't believe they should

         17  be discriminated against and not have cameras.

         18  Question is resources. You've established a $119

         19  million already. And I think now the way you

         20  testified, it's 200 additional schools which would

         21  bring up to about 400. That comes to $600,000 per

         22  school which is not what this cost. So how much do

         23  you see this costing per school?

         24                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: Well, it

         25  varies. The cost varied based on site and they can
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          2  range generally from, let's talk about elementary

          3  schools first, from $80,000 to $240,000. Middle

          4  schools range could be from $175,000 to $275,000 and

          5  for high schools, they could range from $240,000 to

          6  $385,000. Perhaps even a bit higher at some of our

          7  more complex campuses. This is just the direct cost

          8  of the initial installations. In addition to that,

          9  there are a variety of variables, if I may share

         10  them with you, that have potential to significantly

         11  increase cost ranging from (and I witnessed this

         12  myself), from the simple nuisance of having to prune

         13  trees that are blocking a clear view of the building

         14  entrance and exit to the more onerous task of

         15  working on asbestos abatement. These are situations

         16  that would really increase the cost that I just

         17  described to you. It's very complicated. And our

         18  buildings are very complicated as you very well

         19  know. Some of them are very, very large.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I agree. There

         21  will be a different cost in every school. But these

         22  numbers are hugely inflated because -- I'm not

         23  saying that it couldn't cost that much. It could

         24  absolutely cost that much. Let me give you a second.

         25                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: Robert Weiner
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          2  from my staff just gave me a clarifying statement

          3  saying that some of the $120 million monies will go

          4  also to upgrading equipment that presently exist in

          5  some of the schools.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Some of that

          7  money, do you have any idea how much of that money

          8  will?

          9                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: I'm not sure.

         10  Do you know how much? The majority of them could

         11  really benefit from an upgrade.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Oh, absolutely.

         13  Some of them are in complete states of disarray

         14  right now with nobody monitoring and some don't

         15  work.

         16                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: But actually I

         18  expect a more specific answer. We'll follow that up

         19  in writing after this to find out how much

         20  specifically.

         21                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: Absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Point is, I'm

         23  doing schools in my district for as little $80,000

         24  and I've spoken to companies that can do this for

         25  $35,000. Now that's no where near as comprehensive
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          2  as some of the units that you've been putting in

          3  where you put in cameras in locations such as lunch

          4  rooms and hallways. And obviously not in any

          5  locations where anyone has any privacy interest such

          6  as a bathroom or locker room or anything like that.

          7  But there are in hallways and cafeterias and some of

          8  the areas that the principals think they need them.

          9  But there are some extensive systems that can cost

         10  this much. But to put them at entrances and exits,

         11  of a simple school with say seven to ten doors can

         12  cost much, much less.

         13                 Everyone should need to know that if

         14  you're not going to put in a hugely comprehensive

         15  system, it does not cost that amount of money.

         16  Especially if you intend to fund some in your local

         17  districts. Council Member Reed. Oh, he must have

         18  just stepped out. We'll get back to him. Council

         19  Member Gentile. We've also been joined by Council

         20  Member Yassky and Council Member Monserrate.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman. But I think you've basically made the

         23  point that I was going to make. I think that Chief

         24  Nelson has convinced all of us of the benefits of a

         25  camera system beyond the traditional safety issue
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          2  with the cameras. At the same time, the assessment I

          3  understand from Ms. Albanese- DePinto and from the

          4  Chief is based only on the safety issue, the crime

          5  assessment. Is that correct?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: No, there are

          7  other factors that we look at when we're doing an

          8  assessment of a building. As Rose said, there are

          9  crime stats we look, schools to look at. The actual

         10  building site, if you were to go and install cameras

         11  on a campus type environment like she said, like

         12  Erasmus and if you went to a school like my old

         13  school, Dover Cleveland, it would be somewhat

         14  different and the cost would vary there. So there

         15  are a lot of factors other than just crime stats

         16  that we base our assessment on how and where we

         17  install cameras in the schools.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So then

         19  necessarily, Ms. Albanese- DePinto, I guess has

         20  every school then received a needs assessment

         21  review?

         22                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: No, not yet.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Are you in

         24  the process?

         25                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: As part of our
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          2  comprehensive assessments when we visit schools, we

          3  do absolutely look at this as one component as well.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I guess what

          5  I'm asking, let's put the cards on the table here

          6  because we are talking about a lot of money, as we

          7  said five years into this program, only 25 percent

          8  of the schools would be covered. Is there any

          9  possibility that schools in areas where the crime

         10  statistics are not that high, the schools do not

         11  have as you said the donuts across the board, is

         12  there any possibility that those schools would

         13  qualify for security cameras under this program?

         14                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: As I said

         15  earlier, I think it's about resources and I would

         16  hope to think -- I would love to have every school

         17  qualify. But again, our demands are so great and

         18  we're devoting so much of our time to our

         19  instructional plan that right now our plan is to

         20  prioritize where we're placing these cameras.

         21  Hopefully, as we move along and the economy gets

         22  better, perhaps we can have enough funding for all

         23  schools.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: In a fact

         25  you're telling me that they're likely not to be on
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          2  that list.

          3                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Well, the new

          4  construction schools --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: The new

          6  construction schools beyond --

          7                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: -- We talked

          8  about are definitely on the list.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: -- With that

         10  exception.

         11                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: And as we said

         12  earlier, we have to really prioritize because we

         13  have 1,356 schools and they vary in size and they

         14  vary in complexity whether it's crime data or other

         15  information that we need to take into consideration.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: In reality

         17  then, what we're saying here is for those schools

         18  that outside new construction, outside some

         19  particular aspect of a school with a lower crime

         20  rate but some aspect that might qualify them, most

         21  of those schools would not be covered in this five-

         22  year plan.

         23                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Not right now,

         24  no.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Therefore,
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          2  the only way those schools would get the benefit of

          3  a video security system would be to follow the lead

          4  of Council Member Oddo and actually have individual

          5  members put that funding in. Is that what we're

          6  saying?

          7                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: We're trying

          8  to work with the Council in making sure that the

          9  cameras that will be installed will fit the

         10  standards and the specifications that I described in

         11  my testimony. Part of the challenge is and I know

         12  Council Member Oddo because when I was a

         13  superintendent of Brooklyn and Staten Island high

         14  schools, we worked together on camera installations.

         15  We'd rather have one system of one standard and a

         16  set of specifications that really make sense because

         17  that will also help us with not only the

         18  installation, but the maintenance of the cameras.

         19  You must also be mindful of the professional

         20  development that needs to take place when we install

         21  these cameras. People need to know how to use them,

         22  what to do in case they do see an incident taking

         23  place. There is a long list of things that we need

         24  to tend to.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I guess what
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          2  I'm asking is you will allow us to buy into the

          3  system --

          4                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: We'd love to

          5  have you buy into the system.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: -- If it

          7  comes down to that.

          8                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: We'd love to

          9  have you buy into the system.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. Just

         13  some housekeeping. This will be the only panel that

         14  testifies. We do need to take a vote. We need six

         15  people. We have them. I'm going to hold off on the

         16  vote until we get some questions answered. If

         17  someone needs to leave, let me know. We'll make

         18  arrangements for the vote. Council Member Reed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: My Chair, my

         20  question was about the last bill that we're looking

         21  at. That's why I was holding off.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That was the

         23  last part of my housekeeping. We are going to just

         24  keep these questions and come back around. These

         25  questions are just on security cameras. Council
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          2  Member Yassky, do you have a security camera

          3  question? Council Member Dilan.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chair. Just during Chief Nelson's testimony, in his

          6  testimony I guess he posed the question that

          7  concerns me and I guess I'll address it to Ms.

          8  Albanese- DePinto. After these cameras are in place

          9  and installed, do you have any estimates as far as

         10  maintenance and monitoring of the cameras ongoing?

         11                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: This is a

         12  relatively new system so I'm not sure I can answer

         13  that question. I could ask off- line for a member of

         14  my staff to respond to it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: It's definitely

         16  something that would have to be considered in future

         17  budget talks when it comes to these cameras?

         18                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay. Thank

         20  you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         22  Katz.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Before I ask my

         24  question, I want to clarify. Every single new school

         25  built under the capital plan for the Mayor is now
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          2  going to have security cameras in then, right?

          3                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: For these 25

          4  new schools that have been planned, absolutely.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: There's only 25

          6  new schools in the capital plan?

          7                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: In the school

          8  construction design.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: In the SCA.

         10                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: There's only 25

         12  new schools. Every single new school has a security

         13  camera just built into the cost of the capital

         14  construction. Correct?

         15                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So really we're

         17  only talking about existing schools when we talk

         18  about impact zone and all of that.

         19                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: How many high

         21  schools are now equipped with video surveillance and

         22  how many are on the list to be done? I just wanted

         23  to ask one question that you needed your staff here

         24  for.

         25                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: We can tell you
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          2  how many are on the preliminary list maybe off- line

          3  because some of the challenges that we're facing is

          4  some are nonoperational. Even though they have them,

          5  there are not really working. So that wouldn't be

          6  helpful to us. We can get you that number.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Out of the

          8  schools that you mentioned, you don't know how many

          9  of them are high school?

         10                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: It's a

         11  combined. It's high schools and middle schools.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: How many high

         13  schools do we have in the City of New York?

         14                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: We have over

         15  300 high schools.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So 300 high

         17  schools times $200,000 if one of the staff could

         18  just do that quick. It just seems like it would not

         19  a very difficult task to set up a video for all the

         20  high schools in the City of New York, at the bare

         21  minimum.

         22                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: It's not that

         23  simple with all due respect. I think that some of

         24  the high school buildings, the constructions are

         25  huge. I'm thinking about schools that have seven
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          2  floors and that really take up like two City blocks

          3  or something like that. In order to cover every area

          4  in that building, it wouldn't be $200,000 or

          5  $300,000. The amount would be much greater.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right. But with

          7  all due respect to you, it would seem to me that

          8  those are the exact high schools that we need

          9  covered. My point is that if we have to pick and

         10  choose and I don't really understand why we need to

         11  pick and choose. I understand that we are in a

         12  fiscal crisis. We're handing $400 back for real

         13  property tax. We're in a fiscal crisis now. It seems

         14  to me as a body and I think I need to talk to the

         15  Chair about this, we should at the bare minimum be

         16  able to have our high schools covered by cameras.

         17  Maybe I'm in the minority thinking that. I just

         18  think it's something that we need to discuss for the

         19  future.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         21  Katz, I agree completely. As you probably know, my

         22  original bill mandated that cameras in every school.

         23  I was beat up by our attorneys consistently and made

         24  to realize that not in error that it would be same

         25  thing as mandating cops on every corner. There are
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          2  certain things we can't legislate from this body.

          3  Otherwise, it would be dragged out in court for

          4  years and years. We worked with the Administration

          5  to get as much done as we possibly could We're going

          6  to continue to work to make sure we get these in

          7  every school. In fact, this bill requires that if

          8  they don't put them in the school, they need to

          9  report to you, City Council Member, why they don't.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I have a

         11  question then. If I as a City Council Member spend

         12  $2 to $300,000 and ask you to put a camera in one of

         13  my schools that is not an impact school, will the

         14  Department of Education do it if I pay for it?

         15                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: We will work

         16  with City Council on these requests.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Let me ask you a

         18  question. You're talking about the State Department

         19  of Education. What does like Buffalo do? Do we know?

         20  Do they have the same program for video surveillance

         21  or Schenectady or any of the other cities?

         22                 MR. ALLINGER: I don't have that

         23  information with me. But we belong to an association

         24  that represents --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Talk into the
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          2  mic, please.

          3                 MR. ALLINGER: -- The big five --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: We can't hear

          5  you, I'm sorry.

          6                 MR. ALLINGER: I'd be happy to put a

          7  request into an association we belong to that

          8  represents the big five City schools system. The

          9  five fiscal dependently cities like Buffalo,

         10  Rochester, Syracuse, Yonkers.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes, I'd be

         12  curious. I didn't even think of it until you

         13  mentioned the State Department of Education. I think

         14  it would be good to see how this is handled in other

         15  states. I guess my only last comment was I know this

         16  is about the public school system, but I want to

         17  once again throw out my opinion that the children of

         18  the City, even if they are in private schools,

         19  should have the same protections as the kids in

         20  public school. I know there are constitutional

         21  issues. I don't agree with them. I think that we pay

         22  for textbooks. We pay for partial transportation. We

         23  pay for some of the health issues. And I do believe

         24  that this is something that the Council needs to at

         25  least look into for the future as well. I will be in
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          2  touch with your Department. If we can actually pay

          3  for the system, I think that's something we need to

          4  discuss for the future. I appreciate your time.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          7  Council Member. We will be having a hearing in the

          8  future on that specific issue which is being led by

          9  Council Member Felder regarding providing similar

         10  security to private schools which I understand and

         11  agree with you. Council Member Monserrate.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Mr. Chair,

         13  let me also timidly echo some of the concerns my

         14  Council Member colleague from Forest Hills has

         15  expressed. I too also believe that it would be

         16  optimum to have cameras in all our schools. I

         17  understand and I will defer to the judgment of our

         18  Chair and the legal staff in proposing this very

         19  worked on piece of legislation to ensure that we can

         20  work effectively with the Administration. Having

         21  said that, I have one concern about something I

         22  believe it was you, Madam, you pointed out regarding

         23  some of the cameras are actually not recording that

         24  are currently in place?

         25                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: The old
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          2  cameras, the CC TV's.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Didn't you

          4  say a third of them aren't recording?

          5                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: They have very

          6  poor recording capability.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Obviously

          8  that would be a concern. I just wanted again echo

          9  the sentiment perhaps we understand that there are

         10  different mechanisms either the NYPD or the

         11  Department of Education might use to prioritize

         12  where these cameras should be. But the realty is

         13  that crime occurs even in low crime areas and in low

         14  crime schools. In my district, in PS89 we had a sex

         15  offender that assaulted several children and another

         16  one recently in Jackson Heights. I would have to be

         17  able to say that perhaps video surveillance with

         18  recording might have assisted in the quick

         19  apprehension of the first violator. Those are the

         20  remarks I wanted to make, Mr. Chair. Thank you for

         21  your guidance on this bill.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         23  Council Member Monserrate. I agree completely. The

         24  schools that are so- called low crime schools are

         25  much at risk of an intruder, especially a sex
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          2  intruder coming in and much of risk of terrorist

          3  activities as the other schools and should not be

          4  discriminated against. Council Reed has one last

          5  question on this topic.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair. I just want to get a clarification. We are

          8  talking about the cameras in the schools especially

          9  these high schools as being in the school in the

         10  entire building. The reason I asked that is the

         11  Department of Education is making great effort

         12  because they think it is better educationally to

         13  break up these buildings into several different high

         14  schools and different schools. I'm sure my

         15  colleague, we go visit schools and we're confused.

         16  There is two, three, four schools in a building. I

         17  know we've allocated certain things to some schools

         18  and then the rest of the building complains because

         19  they don't have it. I'm just trying to make sure I

         20  understand now this is in a school building

         21  irrespective of how it is segmented out.

         22                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Exactly. I

         23  talked about hot spot areas in schools and I

         24  outlined some of the hot spot areas that belong to

         25  every school in the campus.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Every building?

          3                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Right.

          4  Entrances and exits, stairwells, cafeterias,

          5  auditorium, these are some of the known problem

          6  areas in large school buildings.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, it has

          8  nothing to do with the number of schools or what

          9  they do.

         10                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: No, absolutely

         11  not. These are all shared spaces.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And lastly, Mr.

         13  Chair, if you will indulge me for just a moment,

         14  what is the communication that the Safety Officer

         15  has with the principal or principals about what is

         16  going on? Is there a daily log of what's happening?

         17  Is there a report? No incidents, one incident, this

         18  is how it was resolved. How is that information

         19  being documented?

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Every day

         21  there should be some sort of communication between

         22  the principal or the AP of security with the level

         23  three. Or if there is no level three at the school,

         24  with a school safety agent. If anything happens in

         25  that school, one of the first persons that is
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          2  notified of the incident is the principal. The

          3  principal is the mayor, quarterback, the stakeholder

          4  that's in charge of the facility. School safety

          5  agents work very closely with the principals. DOE

          6  works very closely with NYPD.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I understand.

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: And there is

          9  constant communication.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: That's the first

         11  line of communication if there is a problem is with

         12  the principal?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And the question

         15  was --

         16                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: If I may, or

         17  the designee if the principal is not in the

         18  building.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I understand.

         20  But you always know whether the principal -- you

         21  know who is responsible at any given moment for the

         22  school.

         23                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And all this

         25  conversation, does that encompass also the school
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          2  yards, the playgrounds, these surveillance cameras?

          3                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Well, they

          4  would be. We've also talked about the exterior of

          5  the building and into the school ground area so that

          6  would also include that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: But as of this

          8  moment, the schools that we have with the cameras,

          9  do they encompass coverage of the yards, the open

         10  spaces outside?

         11                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: I believe most

         12  of them do, yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: You believe most

         14  of them do?

         15                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And in the

         17  future, that is the plan?

         18                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: I would think

         19  so, yes, absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I'm --

         21                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Yes. That makes

         22  sense to me.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: -- Not trying to

         24  be disrespectful, but what you were thinking and

         25  what you hope, do we know that is?
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          2                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: It will be.

          3  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

          5  Great.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. We are

          7  going to move onto the second bill, 226- A,

          8  regarding school crime statistics provided to

          9  parents. To sum up your testimony, I believe we're

         10  all on the same page that you agree and support the

         11  portion of the bill which would mandate that this

         12  information be placed on the web. As I mentioned,

         13  I'm a parent of a fifth grader going into the sixth

         14  grade heading into a new school. I'm attempting to

         15  locate information. I think that it's essential that

         16  parents know the crime statistics per school. And to

         17  your credit, you've begun to do that since I've

         18  introduced this bill and since our hearing, recently

         19  you've begun to put crime information broken down

         20  not as completely as this bill mandates, but broken

         21  down on the web for parents. We agree that's useful.

         22  Correct?

         23                 MR. ALLINGER: We agree that we want

         24   --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Again, the
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          2  microphone.

          3                 MR. ALLINGER: You're correct in that

          4  we are very desirous and have put a lot of effort

          5  into providing more information on the web and that

          6  we will continue to improve the quality of the

          7  information in that we see this not as resting on

          8  our laurels, but we will continually improve and

          9  seek ways to make this as relevant as possible to

         10  parent communities.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We appreciate

         12  your support for that portion of the bill and what

         13  you're doing. However, you disagree that we can put

         14  this on the school report cards and to sum up

         15  apparently you disagree because the State has acted

         16  in this area. We're preempted and we're not allowed

         17  to act in this area. Let me give you an argument

         18  that's been successful in the past. The State has

         19  acted on many other areas, graffiti, running on the

         20  field, drag racing, maybe you sense a trend here.

         21  But these are all bills I introduced which double

         22  the penalties in all of those areas in which the

         23  State has already acted. It's our opinion and it's

         24  been held out in the courts that we can mandate

         25  something more than the minimum. We cannot affect
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          2  the minimum which the State requires let's say to

          3  put in a report card, but we can put more in. That's

          4  been held to be legal in all the incidents such as

          5  I've mentioned. Why can't we do it now?

          6                 MR. ALLINGER: One, there are a lot of

          7  areas where there is shared jurisdiction and a lot

          8  areas where the States provide a minimum. But these

          9  statutes which I cited, are very prescriptive. They

         10  say, we shall follow it. They do not say at a

         11  minimum. They do not say including, but not limited

         12  too. Moreover, the thrust of the legislation which

         13  the State adopted in the year 2000 was to create

         14  uniformity and comparability across all school

         15  districts. We are regulated as a State education

         16  corporation and there are areas where local

         17  governments other than school districts can enact

         18  local laws that would affect school districts. But

         19  in areas that become more school focus or

         20  instruction based or in school safety, it's the sole

         21  province of the Board of Regions, the State

         22  Education Commissioner by statutory citation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: This shall be

         24  determined by the Commissioner. Which Commissioner

         25  do you believe that they are referring too?
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          2                 MR. ALLINGER: Education Commissioner.

          3  And there is also a reference --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's State-

          5  wide?

          6                 MR. ALLINGER: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: There's a

          8  reference?

          9                 MR. ALLINGER: Bear with me a second.

         10  I'm quoting this directly. "The uniform violent

         11  incident reporting system shall require public

         12  school districts, Bioses (phonetic), County Vo-Ed

         13  and extension boards, to annually report to the

         14  Commissioner in a form and by a date prescribed by

         15  the Commissioner the following information

         16  concerning violent disruptive incidents that

         17  occurred in the prior school year." And it goes on

         18  to list the content. It does not say including, but

         19  not limited too. Also, if you go on in subdivision

         20  six of 2802, it says these reports used by school

         21  district are uniform and comparable with respect to

         22  the type of incident reported meaning across all

         23  school districts in the State.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It doesn't say

         25  in many areas including but not limited too and yet
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          2  it's been held that's a minimum of what's mandatory

          3  and we can add. Where does it say that we cannot

          4  increase what's put on the report card?

          5                 MR. ALLINGER: What it says is we have

          6  to follow the format laid out in Section 2554 and

          7  generally what the legislature has prescribed in the

          8  whole area of school safety, it is given the

          9  authority to either the Chancellor or if it's a

         10  State regulatory matter, to the Commissioner. This

         11  is a position we have held in other local bills

         12  regarding issues of school safety.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: There is an

         14  obvious disagreement on that. Some of the members

         15  need to vote. Let me move onto some other questions.

         16  Council Member Oddo. Not on this issue? We're going

         17  to go in the same order to be fair. If you don't

         18  have a question on this topic, you can pass. Council

         19  Member Reed. Council Member Yassky.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         21  Chair Vallone. I just want to say I agree with you

         22  if I understand from your questions your position to

         23  be that the State law does not preempt the Council

         24  from demanding that parents of New York City schools

         25  be given as much information as they might possibly
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          2  want. I do not agree with you, Mr. Allinger, the

          3  State law prohibits that.

          4                 MR. ALLINGER: That wasn't the

          5  question I was addressing. I want to be clear that

          6  the Chancellor has given clear direction to staff

          7  that he wants to as quickly as possible improve the

          8  quality and transparency of information provided to

          9  parents. We're working diligently and

         10  collaboratively with the New York Police Department

         11  to do that. We've made stride this years. We've been

         12  able for instance to get the level of incident.

         13  Meaning the severity of the incident into the report

         14  so it wasn't just a description of an incident where

         15  you didn't know if it was severe or minor. We think

         16  that's an improvement. We're going to continue to

         17  try to make more congruent incidents that are under

         18  the penal code versus a disciplinary code and not

         19  don't rise to the level of a crime as Chief Nelson

         20  attested to.

         21                 As a practical matter, the Chancellor

         22  has extended an invitation to the Council to meet

         23  with us to sit down with us and give us constructive

         24  feedback in how we can improve it and what kinds of

         25  feedback are you getting from your own constituents.
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          2  I don't want to give the impression that because

          3  we're under a certain legal constraint that that

          4  interfere or impedes our ability to work with you to

          5  improve reporting.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Are you saying

          7  that the information that's called for here in Intro

          8  226- A is currently reported to parents?

          9                 MR. ALLINGER: There are several

         10  aspects.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Before you do

         12  the aspects, could you just tell me yes or no. Is

         13  all the information called for in 226- A currently

         14  reported to parents?

         15                 MR. ALLINGER: I don't know if all of

         16  it is currently reported to parents.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Did you look

         18  at this before coming here this morning?

         19                 MR. ALLINGER: We want to do all of

         20  it. But I think substantial amount or most of it is,

         21  I don't think all of it is.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I don't think

         23  all of it is either.

         24                 MR. ALLINGER: We want to get to that

         25  point.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Did I just

          3  hear you say we want to do all of it? And if we

          4  agree on that, then I think this is pretty straight

          5  forward actually, Mr. Chair, if the Department

          6  agrees that this information should be reported. I

          7  certainly agree. The Chair does. I'm going to guess

          8  the majority of the Council does. So let's go ahead

          9  and do it and require it.

         10                 MR. ALLINGER: Again, the issue is

         11  what goes into the report card. That is highly

         12  prescriptive by the State. What we want to do and

         13  what we are endeavoring to do is take the OORS data

         14  which is a very robust data base, but not

         15  necessarily a user friendly reporting system and

         16  turn these into user friendly reports. Put it on the

         17  web including the things that you've indicated. What

         18  we're mindful of is that we cannot change the format

         19  of the content of the report cards. That's the sole

         20  province of the Commissioner of Education as

         21  mandated on him by the State legislature.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: While Council

         23  Member Reed reads that section because he's an

         24  attorney. I'd like to have him take a look at that.

         25  Let me just jump in for a second. You're saying
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          2  what's put in that report card is mandated. Where

          3  under this law are you allowed to put information

          4  regarding crime statistics on the web which is what

          5  we do?

          6                 MR. ALLINGER: We don't feel that --

          7  again, we're going to put all the information that

          8  is congruent between NYPD and our discipline code

          9  that's accurate and put it up on the web. What we

         10  are prescribed to do is follow the content in the

         11  format as prescribed by law.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I know, you said

         13  that. But my question is, the law doesn't mention

         14  the web anywhere and yet we decided to give the

         15  parents more information put on the web despite the

         16  fact that the law does not mention web anywhere. So

         17  point is, if you don't believe you can put it in a

         18  report card, is there another way to get this

         19  information to parents which who are not web savvy?

         20                 MR. ALLINGER: Again, we pointed out

         21  what in the bill we believe contradicts or is

         22  preempted by Sections 2554 --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Again, I

         24  understand that. So let's work together towards a

         25  compromise. In what way can we give this information

                                                            76

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  to parents who are not web savvy that you would

          3  approve of?

          4                 MR. ALLINGER: What I'd like to do is

          5  offer a meeting. I hope you don't mind, a meeting

          6  with Rose and other senior staff so we can sit down

          7  and talk through what you would desire to have on

          8  the web and so that we can overcome some of the

          9  issues that we have in this particular bill which I

         10  know that you've been amendable to negotiating. We

         11  remain committed to further negotiations and working

         12  out satisfactory outcome to your concerns.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me again

         14  remind everyone that 90 percent of this bill you

         15  agree with. And it's the small portion you disagree

         16  with is the report card portion which has been

         17  negotiated to death before today. I don't want to

         18  make it sound like we haven't been discussing this

         19  up until Friday. And we don't have an agreement

         20  which is why we're doing it the way we are doing it.

         21  Council Member Yassky.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I don't want

         23  to take to much time. If there's any question as to

         24  whether the members of this Committee accept the

         25  argument that this bill is preempted, then I want to
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          2  continue. If there is no such question because I

          3  really don't think there should be. Mr. Allinger,

          4  the State law that you're relying on says such

          5  report card shall include at a minimum any

          6  information on the school district regarding pupil

          7  performance and so forth. It is inconceivable to me

          8  that everything that's on the report card today is

          9  specifically required in the State law and that

         10  there is no nothing addition. I'd be very surprised

         11  if that's the case.

         12                 MR. ALLINGER: No, I was referring to

         13  2802 which I read specific sections which do not

         14  have at a minimum. But again, I don't want to be

         15  argumentive. What I'd like us to do is sit down, you

         16  tell us and present to you our plans to improve the

         17  information that we put on the web.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Let me just

         19  get to the substance. Do parents know in a

         20  particular school, Lafayette High School, I don't

         21  want to single out one, any particular school high,

         22  is the number of incidents of violence in that

         23  school reported to parents?

         24                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: They have NYPD

         25  crime data which is what goes onto the report card
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          2  and it's also on our web site. I think what we also,

          3  if I may clarify is, we're looking to absolutely do

          4  what you're saying. The daily incident that go on in

          5  schools to actually put them on the website, that's

          6  a commitment that we want to absolutely address. And

          7  we're hoping to do that hopefully very soon by

          8  January. We have our on- line occurrence reporting

          9  system that where schools absolutely record every

         10  incident that takes place, even accidents, falling

         11  down the stairs and things like that.

         12                 We've been working real hard on

         13  making the system much more sophisticated in align

         14  to the discipline codes so that it makes sense.

         15  Whatever in fracture occurs, is aligned to the

         16  discipline code and then there is also the

         17  consequences that follow. We're looking at putting

         18  this information on our website in order to help

         19  parents get a clearer picture of what goes on in the

         20  schools in reference to daily incidents.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Mr. Chair, I'm

         22  not sure understand actually what the substance of

         23  the disagreement is then. Frankly, I think this bill

         24  is ready to pass today. I stand ready to vote for it

         25  at such time as you call for that. Can I just ask
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          2  you this question then? What is the violence rate in

          3  the high schools today? In other words, how many

          4  student on student violence incidents are there in a

          5  year? Do you know that?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: I can tell

          7  you overall year to date for this particular school

          8  year, we are down in felony assaults. We are down in

          9  misdemeanor assaults. We are down in robberies.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: These are in

         11  terms of reported to NYPD?

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Are there

         14  violent incidents that are not reported to NYPD or

         15  that's the entire universal, Ms. DePinto?

         16                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: We have the

         17  entire universe on our OORS reporting system.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Is that the

         19  same that Chief Nelson --

         20                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: They have all

         21  of their NYPD crime data. This is a constant

         22  dialogue that we're having with NYPD on working on

         23  our incident reporting.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: When Chief

         25  Nelson says down this year to last year, he has the
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          2  entire universe at his disposal?

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Yes, when

          4  you're talking about crimes, I have the entire

          5  universe.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Is that the

          7  entire universe of violent incidents one student on

          8  student violence?

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Yes.

         10                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: That number

         12  for this year to date is?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: I would have

         14  to get back to you on that. When you're asking for

         15  specific numbers, because when you talk about

         16  violence it comes in different shades as it pertains

         17  to penal law. I would have to get back to you with

         18  the exact number, sir.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. Thank

         20  you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Are there any

         22  other questions regarding this bill from Councilmen

         23  before we vote? Council Member Reed, you asked one

         24  on this bill so let me go to Dilan first and then

         25  come back.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: The question is

          3  to Mr. Allinger, just in regards to and I'll wait

          4  for his attention. Did you hear the beginning of the

          5  question?

          6                 MR. ALLINGER: No, I'm sorry.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Just in regard

          8  to your argument on State preemption on this

          9  particular Intro, are there any other reasons why

         10  the Department may object to this Intro outside of

         11  the State preemption argument?

         12                 MR. ALLINGER: I think connected to

         13  the preemption issue is the practical matter of

         14  having interacting with the agency that regulates

         15  us, the State Education Department, they don't just

         16  have a static reporting requirement. They are

         17  regularly updating how they want incidents reported.

         18  Right as we speak, they're looking at creating

         19  different kind of reporting systems. Our problem

         20  would be that we would be working with them, giving

         21  them feedback on an interim process about their

         22  proposed way in which to have State wide comparable

         23  and uniform reporting. It wouldn't be sensible for

         24  us then to be creating uniform system that was not

         25  responsive to what our regulators are prescribing
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          2  regularly talk to us about in which we give them

          3  feedback on. It's beyond just the issue of

          4  preemption. It's the practical issue of having to be

          5  very focused on kind of an organic process with the

          6  State and it's a process that they do change and

          7  will continue to change in that we have respond to.

          8                 That being said, it's not like we're

          9  just the repository everything we say, we do give

         10  them feedback. What I'm hoping is that we can have

         11  the opportunity to sit down with you maybe before

         12  you pass this bill, because I don't feel we felt we

         13  had the opportunity since this was last amended to

         14  gather your concerns and we can also convey back to

         15  the State Education Department what the local

         16  government and what our local City Council is

         17  concerned about. Again, the other issue that has

         18  come up is that this requires us to provide on

         19  demand paper reports and that is an issue that we

         20  don't consider necessary reasonable.

         21                 For instance, if someone came up and

         22  asked us to run a report on every school, that would

         23  be 15,000 pages every time we did it in hard copy.

         24  That is another substantive issue we would like to

         25  negotiate with you. We know your intent is
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          2  transparency and to get meaningful information to

          3  parent community. We feel the way this is written

          4  could provide an unreasonable burden that would be

          5  difficult to comply with and would also redirect

          6  precious resources away from the reporting systems

          7  we're trying to upgrade right now.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: According to

          9  the legislation, it appears that the Department of

         10  Education would have to make a report available only

         11  once a year, if I'm reading this correctly and I

         12  don't know maybe Council can correct me or not

         13  correct me. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. And

         15  last question on this bill before we vote.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Yes, I promise

         17  to pass on the question on the third bill because I

         18  know we're all anxious to get out of here. But know

         19  I'm a little bit confused. It is what happens when

         20  hearings perhaps go on a little bit too long and

         21  then other issues get opened up. Are there incidents

         22  that happen in schools that are not considered

         23  criminal?

         24                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: Sure. Kids

         25  falling.

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I'm not just

          3  necessarily talking about just falling.

          4                 MS. ALBANESE-DEPINTO: A staff

          5  falling.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Altercations

          7  between parent and a faculty member and a student or

          8  the school safety agent and a child. In other words,

          9  Council Member Yassky is trying to find out if

         10  apples are apples in these reports. So you have the

         11  total universe and then the police say that they

         12  have a total universe. But I think we're talking

         13  about universes that are going like this. I'm trying

         14  to find out. You have more incident reports total

         15  irrespective of what they are then the police do. Is

         16  that right?

         17                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: Correct.

         18  Principals must report any incident and that doesn't

         19  necessarily have to be a violent incident. It could

         20  be as I said before, someone falling, an altercation

         21  between two adults. We have the whole bank of

         22  information on our on- line occurrence reporting

         23  system.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I understand

         25  where the Chief is coming from and I think it's also
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          2  important to understand that if parents are reading

          3  this information or anybody is reading it, it is

          4  subjective to interpretation. That is I think maybe

          5  an argument in your behalf in terms of just giving

          6  out this information raw to people who don't have

          7  the ability --

          8                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: Exactly.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: -- I don't mean

         10  that they're stupid. But to interpret it. We find

         11  ourselves in the predicament all the time. The media

         12  wants us to say yes or no to something and do we or

         13  don't. You can't explain it. Nevertheless, it seems

         14  to me that too much information is probably better

         15  than none at all or not enough. If we had to error

         16  one way or the other and allow ourselves to have

         17  that interpretation. So I still don't see a reason.

         18  I understand the concern about the web versus the

         19  report card, et cetera. But I still think we need to

         20  move forward and vote. At this point, I'd still be

         21  voting yes on this bill recognizing the concerns

         22  that you have. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And for the

         24  really, really last question, Council Member Yassky.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Just very,
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          2  very briefly. Just one quick. Ms. DePinto, do you

          3  keep track of the consequences of an incident

          4  report? In other words, do you know out of a 100 or

          5  1,000 violent incidents, how many result in a

          6  prosecution, a pins proceeding, a disciplinary

          7  proceeding of some kind. Do you know that? Do you

          8  keep track of that?

          9                 MS. ALBANESE- DEPINTO: The

         10  information that we keep track of and that we have

         11  available is the suspension information,

         12  superintendent suspension and principal suspension.

         13  We don't necessarily have the other information that

         14  you just alluded too.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: One or two

         17  Council Members need to leave to another Committee.

         18  Before we get to questions on school safety agents,

         19  we're going to vote on all three. There is one

         20  concern that I would like to address regarding

         21  school safety agents which Chief Nelson brought up.

         22  He brought up the potential danger to school safety

         23  agents in that school which is obviously a concern

         24  of mine. It's important to note that this

         25  information, unlike the information that we just
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          2  discussed does not go to the public. It's

          3  information that goes on under the police reporting

          4  bill to the City Council. Because of an exemption we

          5  passed last month, which I sponsored, it does not

          6  have to go onto the web. So it goes to the City

          7  Council because it's something that we need to do

          8  our jobs in requesting school safety agents. It does

          9  not go to the public. That's something you need to

         10  know before you vote. We're now going to call the

         11  vote on all three of these bills.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. If I

         14  just may have one moment. I think these bills today

         15  go a long way to protect our kids and give parents

         16  information especially with school cameras. These

         17  cameras keep intruders from entering the school.

         18  They keep kids in the school. They keep bad behavior

         19  from happening in the school and they may in fact

         20  prevent terrorist attacks and I think we agree that

         21  they should be in as many schools as possible. This

         22  goes a long away in that regard. So I'm proud to

         23  vote on aye on all of these bills.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reed.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I vote aye on

          6  all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all and

          9  just to continue what the Chairman said. I'm voting

         10  aye on all despite the fact that it doesn't require

         11  security cameras on every single school in the City

         12  of New York. I do believe that at least especially

         13  for our high schools, that would be a benefit to

         14  every single community in the City. It is something

         15  that is being asked for. It is something that would

         16  protect our children. I think in the scheme of

         17  things, we do spend a lot of money especially on

         18  capital projects in this City. I do believe that we

         19  should be able to find the resources to do this and

         20  I vote aye on all. Thank you, Mr. Chair, for your

         21  leadership on this.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Monserrate.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Mr. Chair,

         24  let me also commend you in your leadership and just

         25  adding to the remarks that if it is my firm belief
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          2  that all our public schools should be a sanctuary

          3  for our children and for our young people as they

          4  continue to move forward and hopefully we will be in

          5  a place that cameras that will be at all of our

          6  public schools. I vote aye on all bills. Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Yassky.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Chair Vallone,

          9  I want to thank you for all three of these and in

         10  particular for your work on school cameras. You're

         11  making a real difference. Thank you. I vote aye on

         12  all.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye on all

         15  and thank you Chairman for the work you've done

         16  specifically for the future of our City, our

         17  children. Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Aye on all.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of nine in

         21  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         22  abstentions, all items are adopted. Council Members,

         23  please sign the Committee Reports.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you all

         25  for your work on this. This is a long, long process

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  which is culminating today and then again on

          3  Wednesday. I'm going to take some questions on the

          4  school safety officer bill. Sorry to make you sit

          5  here and listen to all of that. Chief, you heard

          6  what I said about this not going to the public. That

          7  seems to be your major concern. Does that affect

          8  your opposition to this in any way?

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Yes, the

         10  whole idea of reporting in a way that we're going to

         11  be reporting and giving the number of agents that

         12  are in and all schools, I find that somewhat

         13  troubling. If you look at any of your terrorist

         14  reports that we get from the federal government as

         15  it pertains to the coverage at schools, they speak

         16  about not making things readily available. About

         17  looking out for people coming to look at the school

         18  and see how many people there are, how the schools

         19  is made. They speak of different ways of looking out

         20  for terrorists. And now for me to have to report and

         21  give an actual report that I know that it's going to

         22  come to your body, but I feel once I put down in

         23  numbers, someone other than you might get their

         24  hands on it and to have that out there that they can

         25  look at any school. I mean we're doing someone's
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          2  homework for them. Look at any school and know

          3  exactly how many agents are in that school plus the

          4  snapshot that I would give you since school has

          5  started, the first day of school, the snapshot that

          6  I would have given you then, I can tell you has

          7  changed drastically in the last two months.

          8  Deployment of agents, deployment of police officers

          9  in schools is something that's fluid, that's very

         10  dynamic --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Chief, not to

         12  interrupt, but you testified to that.

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We understand

         15  completely that you put task force in certain days

         16  and these things are fluid.

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: However, many,

         19  many, an overwhelming amount of schools. My

         20  daughter's school in the five years she's been there

         21  has had one guard. You can obviously put in an

         22  average down for the amount of guards for many, many

         23  of these schools while others will obviously be

         24  fluid and will change on the report as you put the

         25  report in. We disagree on that. Although, I do see
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          2  your concern regarding what's being made public and

          3  I'm sure all Council Members are listening, when

          4  they get that information not to have it made

          5  public.

          6                 Are there any questions from Council

          7  Members on the school safety officer bill? All

          8  right. I thank the three of you. You've done a lot

          9  of work on this for the last two years. In

         10  conjunction with us, we agree on 90 percent of it. I

         11  thank you all very much for your testimony and look

         12  forward to continue to work with you. Thank you.

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: Thank you,

         14  sir.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm going to

         16  hold the vote open, although the testimony portion

         17  of this hearing is over.

         18                 (Meeting adjourned at 12:00 p.m.)
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          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, LORI SANTOMIERI, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 8th day of November 2004.
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         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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